
Dated 07-20-16 

Village of Mukwonago 

REGULAR BOARD OF BUILDING AND ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

Thursday, July 28, 2016 
 
Time:  6:30 p.m. 
Place:  Mukwonago Municipal Building/Board Room, 440 River Crest Court 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of minutes for May 26, 2016 regular meeting 

 
4. Public Hearing 

All persons interested in making comments about any of the public hearing items will be heard.  Formal petitions 
and written comments regarding any of the public hearing items may be submitted tonight.  During the public 
hearing(s), if you wish to be heard, the Board of Building and Zoning Appeals asks that you begin by stating 
your name and address, speak for no more than three minutes and attempt to avoid duplication.  Each person 
speaking at the public hearing must sign the Public Hearing Appearance sign-in sheet before speaking.  The 
sign-in sheet is available on the table located at the back of the room. 
 

A. Request by Steven Plochocki for a variance to allow for the construction of a cold storage 
building (boat shelter) in the side yard as opposed to the rear yard pursuant to Section 
100-453 (5) of the Village of Mukwonago Municipal Code (Zoning) for the property located 
at 210 Grand Avenue, known as MUKV1976085 
 

5. New Business 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Following Item 

 
A. Consideration of a request by Steven Plochocki for a variance to allow for the construction 

of a cold storage building (boat shelter) in the side yard as opposed to the rear yard 
pursuant to Section 100-453 (5) of the Village of Mukwonago Municipal Code (Zoning) 
for the property located at 210 Grand Avenue, known as MUKV1976085 
 

6. Adjournment 
 
It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of, members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at 
the above stated meeting to gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the 
governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice.  Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of individuals with disabilities through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, contact the 
Clerk’s Office, 440 River Crest Court, (262) 363-6420, Option 4. 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
May 26, 2016 Board of Building and Zoning Appeals Minutes 
Page 1 of 4 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD OF  
BUILDING AND ZONING APPEALS MEETING 

Thursday May 26, 2016 
 
Call to Order 
Chairperson Chris Tarr called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. located in the Board Room of 
the Mukwonago Municipal Building, 440 River Crest Ct. 
 
Roll Call 
Members Present:  Sarah Szejn 
   Dave Mades 

Jack Dexter 
Chris Tarr 

Members Excused:  Don Fischer 
 
Also present:   John Beauchamp, 1st Alternate Member 

Joe Hankovich, Supervisor of Inspections/Zoning Administrator 
Robert Harley, Building Codes Official 
Bruce Kaniewski, Village Planner 
Steven Braatz, Jr., Clerk/Treasurer 

 
1st Alternate John Beauchamp filled the vacant seat on the Board due to the excused absence 
of Board member Fischer. 
 
Minutes  
Clerk Braatz noted there were minor modifications to the minutes, including the addition of the 
meeting location and shifting some wording around.  The content was not changed.  Motion by 
Szejn/Mades to approve the April 20, 2016 regular meeting minutes as amended carried. 

 
Public Hearing 
A public hearing to consider a request by Charlie Miller, Citizens Bank, for a variance of 2.6 
feet to allow an interior side yard setback of 7.4 feet for a lot line adjustment, as opposed to the 
required minimum interior side yard setback of 10 feet, pursuant to Section 100-152(d)(2) of 
the Municipal Code of the Village of Mukwonago for the property located at 505 and 507 Main 
Street, known as MUKV1976164 and MUKV1976165; and a variance of 34 feet to allow a lot 
width of 66 feet at the street yard building setback line for a lot line adjustment, as opposed to 
the required minimum lot width of 100 feet in the B-2 zoning district, pursuant to Section 100-
152(d)(1) of the Municipal Code of the Village of Mukwonago for the property located at 505 
and 507 Main Street, known as MUKV1976164 and MUKV1976165 opened at 6:32 p.m. 
 
No comments from the public. 
 
Public hearing closed at 6.33 p.m. 
 
Charlie Miller, Citizens Bank, presented the plans to adjust a portion of the lot line between 
MUKV1976164 and MUKV1976165.  The bank took over ownership of both of these 
properties, which were formerly owned by one common owner.  Currently the property line 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
May 26, 2016 Board of Building and Zoning Appeals Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

 

between the two properties goes through the north end of the existing commercial building, 
which is mainly located on MUKV1976165.  The bank would like to adjust a portion of this lot 
line north by 15 feet so the commercial building will be entirely within MUKV1976165.  They 
would like to sell both properties independently.  The electrical service unit and the dumpster 
enclosure are located on the residential property but service the commercial building, but there 
were never any formal easements put into place to allow for the commercial property to utilize 
these.  There is also a garage located on the residential property, but there was no formal 
easement put into place to allow for access to Blood St.  Mr. Miller is asking for variances to 
allow for this adjustment to occur.  He considered the notion of making the properties 
condominiums, but two separate realtors stated that it would be virtually impossible to sell.  If 
the variances were not granted, the residential property would have to be removed, which 
would reduce the tax base. 
 
Hankovich stated both lots are zoned B-2 (General Business District).  He noted that the 
commercial building was built over the lot line sometime after WWII, prior to zoning 
regulations.  He stated that MUKV1976164 has a lot width of around 66’, making the lot an 
existing non-conforming lot pursuant to Sec. 100-152 (d)(1), which requires a minimum lot 
width of 100’.  Sec. 100-22 of the Municipal Code restricts a lot from being reduced so as to 
not meet the provisions of Chapter 100 (Zoning Code).  This lot line adjustment would make a 
sub-standard lot more sub-standard.  
 
Motion made by Szejn/Dexter to grant a variance of 2.6 feet to allow an interior side yard 
setback of 7.4 feet for a lot line adjustment, as opposed to the required minimum interior side 
yard setback of 10 feet, pursuant to Section 100-152(d)(2) of the Municipal Code of the Village 
of Mukwonago for the property located at 507 Main Street, known as MUKV1976165.  

 
The reasons for granting the variance are: 

 
1. Special circumstances apply to property. The existing structures were built sometime 

between 1941 and 1950, prior to the implementation of zoning ordinances in 1960.  The 
previous owner created the hardship by constructing a building across lot lines of 
properties that were both owned by the same owner, prior to the implementation of the 
zoning code. 

2. The variance will not alter the character of the neighborhood. 
3. The current uses of this parcel and MUKV1976164 will not change. 
4. There were no objections. 
5. The variance is the minimum that will afford relief. 
6. Under 2005 Wisconsin Act 112, the existing property could be rebuilt in the same 

footprint. 
 
The conditions of the variance are: 

 
1. The dumpster needs to be removable. 
2. The lot lines cannot move from the illustrations presented at the meeting on May 26, 

2016. 
3. A deed restriction shall be prepared, subject to the Village Attorney’s review, and 

recorded to communicate that if the commercial building were to be destroyed or 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
May 26, 2016 Board of Building and Zoning Appeals Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 

removed, it cannot be built in the same location.  Rather, the setbacks for the new 
building will be calculated based on the original lot line.  

4. A right of first refusal shall be placed on this property to allow the owner of 
MUKV1976964 to purchase back, at fair market value, the 15’ x 120’ piece of property 
being added that property as a result of the lot line adjustment. 

5. The applicant shall pay all tax listing recording fees, is responsible for recording the 
documents, and shall provide a copy of the recorded documents to the Village Clerk.  

 
Motion carried unanimously upon a roll call vote. 
 
Motion made by Szejn/Dexter to grant a variance of 34 feet to allow a lot width of 66 feet at the 
street yard building setback line for a lot line adjustment, as opposed to the required minimum 
lot width of 100 feet in the B-2 zoning district, pursuant to Section 100-152(d)(1) of the 
Municipal Code of the Village of Mukwonago for the property located at 505 Main Street, 
known as MUKV1976164.  

 
The reasons for granting the variance are: 

 
1. Special circumstances apply to property. The existing structures were built sometime 

between 1941 and 1950, prior to the implementation of zoning ordinances in 1960.  The 
previous owner created the hardship by constructing a building across lot lines of 
properties that were both owned by the same owner, prior to the implementation of the 
zoning code. 

2. The variance will not alter the character of the neighborhood. 
3. The current uses of this parcel and MUKV1976164 will not change. 
4. There were no objections. 
5. The variance is the minimum that will afford relief. 
6. Under 2005 Wisconsin Act 112, the existing property could be rebuilt in the same 

footprint. 
 
The conditions of the variance are: 

 
1. The dumpster needs to be removable. 
2. The lot lines cannot move from the illustrations presented at the meeting on May 26, 

2016. 
3. A deed restriction shall be prepared, subject to the Village Attorney’s review, and 

recorded to communicate that if the commercial building were to be destroyed or 
removed, it cannot be built in the same location.  Rather, the setbacks for the new 
building will be calculated based on the original lot line.  

4. A right of first refusal shall be placed on this property to allow the owner of 
MUKV1976964 to purchase back, at fair market value, the 15’ x 120’ piece of property 
being added that property as a result of the lot line adjustment. 

5. The applicant shall pay all tax listing recording fees, is responsible for recording the 
documents, and shall provide a copy of the recorded documents to the Village Clerk.  

 
Motion carried unanimously upon a roll call vote. 

 



Village of Mukwonago 
Waukesha and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin 
May 26, 2016 Board of Building and Zoning Appeals Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Steven Braatz, Jr. 
Clerk/Treasurer 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF MUKWONAGO  
BOARD OF BUILDING AND ZONING APPEALS TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR 

VARIANCE REQUESTED BY STEVEN PLOCHOCKI FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
210 GRAND AVENUE 

 
Please take notice that there will be a public hearing before the Board of Building and Zoning 
Appeals of the Village of Mukwonago in the Board Room of the Village Hall, 440 River Crest 
Court, Mukwonago, Waukesha and Walworth Counties, on Thursday, July 28, 2016, 
commencing at 6:30 p.m., to consider the following matter(s): 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Variance to Section 100-453 (5) of the Municipal Code of the 

Village of Mukwonago 
TAX KEY/ADDRESS: MUKV1976085, 210 Grand Avenue 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: PT LOTS 1 4 & 5 BLK 3 ORIGINAL PLAT MUKWONAGO VILLAGE 

& PT VACATED JEFFERSON ST OF MUKWONAGO VILLAGE PT 
SE1/4 SEC 26 T5N R18E COM SW COR LOT 8 BLK 3 N14°27'E 
74.30 FT N21°58'E 88.5 FT THE BGN N21°58'E 126.3 FT N86°E 
45.8 FT S03°53'E 182.75 FT N44°41'W 18.77 FT N66°40'W 58.38 
FT N56°25'W 46.27 FT TO BGN R2080/555 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Steven Plochocki 
MATTER:   Applicant seeks a variance to allow for the construction of a cold 

storage building (boat shelter) in the side yard as opposed to the rear 
yard pursuant to Section 100-453 (5) of the Village of Mukwonago 
Municipal Code (Zoning).  

 

At this time all interested persons will be afforded a hearing.  Information regarding the above 
noticed hearing(s) may be obtained in the Clerk’s Office.   
 
Steven A. Braatz, Jr. 
Village Clerk 
Pub:  7/13, 7/20 
























	20160728BoardofAppealsAgenda
	#03-MINUTES
	20160526BoardofAppealsMinutesdraft

	#04-PUBLIC HEARING
	20160728210GrandAveVarianceNotice

	#05-NEW BUSINESS
	#05a-210 Grand Ave Variance
	210 Grand Ave Variance Application
	210 Grand Ave Variance Plans



